Public Document Pack

@ Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET MEMBER FOR CULTURE & CITY DEVELOPMENT
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 10.00 AM
THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Anna Martyn Tel 023 9283 4870
Email: anna.martyn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please
notify the contact named above.

Membership

Councillor Steve Pitt (Cabinet Member)

Councillor Stephen Morgan MP Councillor Linda Symes

(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting).

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are
accepted.

AGENDA
1 Apologies for absence
2 Declaration of interests
3 Portsmouth Creates (Pages 3 - 28)

4 Annual Libraries and Archives update (Pages 29 - 36)


http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/

5 Archives Management Policies (Pages 37 - 54)
6 Portsmouth Museums annual update (Pages 55 - 70)

7 Bookfest update (Pages 71 - 74)

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and
social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the
meeting nor records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded.
Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the
Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.

Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other
difficulties occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's

website.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785



https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785

Agenda Iltem 3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Culture and City Development Decision Meeting
Date of meeting: 19 July 2019

Subject: Portsmouth Creates

Report by: Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services
Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To seek authorisation from the Cabinet Member for Culture and City
Development for financial support towards the establishment of Portsmouth
Creates which in turn will act as leverage for funding from other key
stakeholders including Arts Council England and the University of Portsmouth.

2. Recommendations

21 That officers are authorised to support the creation of Portsmouth Creates
as a new independent organisation to deliver the outcomes of the Cultural
Strategy.

2.2 That a grant of £50,000 is confirmed for both 2019/20 and 2020/21 to

support the establishment of Portsmouth Creates but that this will only be
released on confirmation of securing of funding from other key partners.

3. Background

31 In late 2017 Victorious Festival, approached Portsmouth City Council with the
offer of personal funding to support the provision of a new Creative and Cultural
Strategy to harness the energy and enthusiasm which was developed out of the
bid for UK City of Culture 2021.

3.2 The former Cabinet Member, ClIr Linda Symes, was in agreement that this was
an important and overdue piece of work and welcomed the opportunity for it to
proceed to address some of the core issues:

e The current state of creative and cultural provision and delivery in the city.
e What is the vision for culture in the city over the next 5 years?
e What are the priority objectives resulting from this vision?

Pade 3
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

e How will the city deliver this vision and these key objectives in the next 5
years?

Funding was also secured for this strategic project from Arts Council England
and Stephen Browning was appointed by James Ralls to co-ordinate and
deliver this work including identifying an appropriate structure which would be
able to drive the findings forward, and incorporate how the creative industries in
Portsmouth could support, and contribute to this process.

From the perspective of the council there was an important story that needed to
be told; a story that shows how culture in Portsmouth has changed dramatically
in the last 10 years. We also viewed this as a starting point for Portsmouth’s
future strategy, understanding what has been achieved and the impact that this
has had on the city and the local community as well as looking ahead to the
next 5 years, with the aim to present an exciting and practical vision for culture
in Portsmouth, one which can inspire individuals and organisations in the city to
participate in a proactive and dynamic way.

The development of the strategy involved a mix of desk research, telephone
consultation, meetings, and data analysis and culminated in a sharing of the
information at a presentation by Stephen Browning in early March 2019. It was
felt that it would be best for a new organisation, Portsmouth Creates, to be
established to deliver the next phase of the works in order to achieve the initial
aspirations.

The Council has continued to facilitate a range of meetings following the
presentation of the strategy in early March with organisations and key
individuals such as Arts Council England and the University of Portsmouth in
regards to potential funding contributions for the development of the next stage.
Additionally we have approached Tim Rusby who has agreed to be the interim
chair the new organisation.

We understand that the positive conversations with the Arts Council are likely to
result in new funding being secured to support work in Portsmouth which was
important as it was essential that any new organisation did not take existing Arts
Council funding to cultural organisations in Portsmouth. We anticipate that the
Arts Council funding will be confirmed once the Council has confirmed their
funding position.

Consideration is currently being given to appropriate legal models for
Portsmouth Creates and we have asked the Arts Council to provide some
example Governance documents from other successful models to assist. No
payments will be made to the organisation until the Legal structure for the new
organisation is established and the necessary Service Level Agreement and
evidence of any other partner agreements is in place.

Officers can also confirm that the relationship between Portsmouth Creates and
Portsmouth City Council will be defined through a detailed Service Level
Agreement which will clearly outline the expectations and outcomes for delivery

Pade 4

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



41

4.2

5.1

6.1

71

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

against the funding provided and will also reflect on the other strategic funding
which the organisation secures.

Reasons for recommendations

Initial discussions have already identified a number of possible strategic
priorities which might emerge during the initial period of operation including:

Skills development and training

Leadership development

Support for governance

Opportunities for young people to be employed in the creative sector
Improved use of existing resources (buildings, equipment, people)
New funding sources

A raised profile for the creative industries

Interest in Portsmouth mounting a bid for UK City of Culture in 2025

The establishment of a new independent organisation with support from new
stakeholders is critical to the aspiration for the delivery of the Cultural Strategy.
The diminishing role local authorities can take with their reducing financial base
means that an independent organisation will be better placed to maximise the
returns from the breadth of funding routes which are available and which are not
available for local authorities to bid into. Additionally the personal support and
funding provided by James Ralls is likely to lever in other philanthropic support
which we feel would be very advantageous.

Equality impact assessment

A preliminary Equalities Impact Assessment is attached.

Legal implications

There will be a need to consider the legal structure and governance
arrangements proposed for 'Portsmouth Creates' in order to gain assurance for
the Council and its partners that the new body's decision making procedures will

be robust and effective and will provide adequate transparency and
accountability in relation to funds to be entrusted to it.

Director of Finance's comments

Grant payments of £50,000 per year for 2019/20 and 2020/21 will be funded
from the portfolio reserve.

Pade 5
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

S|gned by ........................................
Stephen Baily
Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Appendices:

Appendix A: Portsmouth Creates Presentation by Stephen Browning of 6" March 2019

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
None

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ..o ON o

Signed by:
Cabinet Member for Culture and City Development

Pade 6
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Preliminary assessment form 2018

www.portsmouthccg.nhs.uk www.portsmouth.gov.uk

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

I identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

m How are going to mitigate or remove any potential negative impacts
1 opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups

p data/feedback

I prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

Directorate: [City development and culture ]

—/

P
Service, function: \Eulture

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

Revenue Grant funding to support the establishment of Portsmouth Creates a new independent
organisation to deliver the outcomes of the Cultural Strategy

- J

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

Y e
\\7/\ Existing

'

‘\t) New / proposed

() Changed
—/
Page 7



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

To provide a specified level of revenue funding towards this specific new cultural organisation for both
2019/20 and 2020/21

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

The function is to provide funding directly to Portsmouth Creates and as independent organisation they
will determine the nature and shape of the programmes of activity which will be confirmed and
monitored by the legal organisation which is established.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Poisr::’:clt 1o Unclear

Age *
Disability

Race

Sex

Gender reassignment
Sexual orientation
Religion or belief
Pregnancy and maternity

Marriage & civil partnership

VAR S R VR VR R SR RN VA R VR VY

Other excluded groups

Note:Other excluded groups examples includes,Homeless, rough sleeper and unpaid carers. Many
forms of exclusion are linked to financial disadvantage. How will this change affect people on low
incomes, in financial crisis or living in areas of greater deprivation?

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

If there are any potential negative impacts on any of the protected characteristics, What have
you put in place to mitigate or remove the negative impacts/barriers?

Page 8



Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups? e.g. A new service has been created for people with a disability to
help them gain employment this would mean that this helps promote equality for the protected
characteristic of disability only.

Age

Disability

Race

Sex

Gender reassignment

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

Pregnancy or maternity

Marriage & civil partnership

)
)
@
8
@
)
@
)
)
o

LR EINESE SNt INCINL N EINEIRED
OUJOAOLIOL IO L]

Other excluded groups

If the answer is "no" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Please add in the text boxes below what feedback / meetings you have attended for each specific
protected characteristic

Age There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group
Disability There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group
Race There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group
Sex There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group

Page 9



Gender reassignment There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group

Sexual orientation There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group
Religion or belief There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group
Pregnancy and maternity There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group

Marriage & civil partnership  [There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group

Other excluded groups There is no specific data obtained of the impact on this group

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

PCC staff-If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you
require help Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email:equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CCG staff-If you have to complete a full EIA please email: sehccg.equalityanddiveristy@nhs.net if you
require help

Q7 - How have you come to this decision? Summarise your findings and conclusion below

The provision of funding to Portsmouth Creates is to assist in the leverage of other funding and to
assist with the delivery of the Cultural Strategy which has been independently written. We anticipate
that they will be able to provide activities which do target specific groups which we can further specify
within the detailed Service Legal Agreement which will be drawn up between PCC and Portsmouth
Creates.

As an independent organisation we will expect that Portsmouth Creates will have their own Equalities &
Diversity policy and part of the provision of this funding will require them to supply the Council with their
policy along with a range of other policy documents which again will be articulated in the details of the
Service Level Agreement. T

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Claire Looney

This EIA has been approved by: Stephen Baily
Contact number: 023 9283 4775

Date: 8th July 2019

Page 10




PCC staff-Please email a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact
you with any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.
Telephone: 023 9283 4789, Email: equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CCG staff-Please email a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality lead who will contact you with any
comments or queries about your preliminary . Email: sehccg.equalityanddiversity@nhs.net

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



6L0C YoJe\ 9

UINOWIS}IOd Ul
2.1N3|ND JO JuawWwdoPAa(

941 01 yoeouddy
dI8918.11S MON VY




A1o3siy [eanynd
Aseulpioeaixa
ue ypas A

B " "SI91UM pue
sysiue sa.;dsul
JeyrAipe
***JINOWISIOd




suonRsanQ .
suonepuUsIWIWOddY .
SAIRIIUI MU Y
S9NLIoL JU9alLiDD)

A3a1e43s [_UN}ND 24NN} v

10303s 93} W4} ydeqpasA

ssa20.d -
Op 0} P SE PIYSE 2I9M 9M JBUYM — Jalig .

{S91eIDOSSY Sulumolg uaydals ade oym — uoidNpoIIU| .




UOP3|qUIAA Ul [[BY 342DU0D
A1yan mau ayy uo 3uisiApe pue AJ3j[eD [euoieN Y3} Y3m Supdom Ajpuadind .

}29/04d s||eAA JOH 943 UO PI3IOAN -
}SNJ] [edn3jnd Ynowsiiod
93 03 JUsW3eueW [BIDJDWWOD WO [[BYP|IND SY3 JO JojSUBI} 9Y3 UO PISIAPY .

4TH ay3
03 PIq [N4SSDIINS S,3sNU| 950Y AJe|y 10} ueld Juawdo[aASQ 2USIPNY DY} DI0JAA -

<vdS

9Je OiLiAA

10309s 93e}ay pue 21n3|nd 3y} 03 DIApPEe
A>ueynsuod yuswadeuew 3ulpirold saiepossy Suiumodg usydals ‘6661 adulIsS .

UOpUOT
Ul 92e|d 9yl 1e 1snJ| asueq Alesodwiaiuod ayy Jo OFD WUl Ajpusday .

JSY Y3 Jo4 suoIIe[Y dljqnd pue ssald ‘SunadJely 4o Jo3daldig JauwloS .
AjJeuoireulaiul pue 3N ay3 Ul J03d3S [eanynd ay3 Ul updom sieak ob .

S91e1D0ossy ulumolg usydais




cAadA19p sH
10} Ayijiqisuodsal aAey pue A393e43s 93 JO dIYSISUMO 3B} [[IM OYM — dNSSI [BIIILD

S1e9A G 3XaU dY3 Ul S9A13D3[qO
£33 Y1 pue UOISIA SIU3 JDAI[DP P|N0d A3ID 9y} MOY 03 SB SUOIIEPUILLILIOID] e A

UOISIA SIU3} wod) 3ulynsad saAndalqo Ayuond ayy ysijqeis3

A31> 3y3 Ul 94NN 104 UOISIA e dojaAaQ

£31> a3 ul AsAl2p pue uoisiaoad [ean3jnd JO 93B1S JUSLIND Y} MIIADY

jaug 3yl

pue|3u3 [IDUNO) S}y pue SNOLIOIIA AQ PRUOISSILLILLOD SBM MIOAA

op
0} payse

..M
9M JBUAA




Q10T Joquia1das ul SNOLIOIDIA pPUE [IDUNOD SHY 9y} 03 panliwigns sem uoday .

SNOLIOIDIA puUE [1PUN0) A3
UINOWS1Iod ‘pue|3ul [IDUNO0D) SMY YIM S3UIISaW JO JI9quINU B 949M 34943 Uoiippe uj .

UINOWIS1IOd Ul S3LI3SNpUl 9AI1B31D 93 UO BIEp [BIDNID
papiroad ‘[puno) A1) syl pue AMSJaAIUN 33 AQ papuny ‘SNSUDD) 9AI3RALD S,UINOWSLIO] -

Q10T
|udy pue Aienugea4 ul diysiaulied |eanijnd sy 4O Staquuau YiM UOI3B}NSUO0D JayinS .

uoiga.
33 Ul pue A310 ay3 Ul 10123S [_JNyNd 3Y3 SsoJdoe woly ajdoad 0S J9A0 YUM SMIIAISIU] .

$S970.d

SS9290.d




ss2>0.d s1y3 40 In0 sawWod |edideld SulyDWos 3Byl 94NSuU S,397

i3snp
duLisyies J|ays ay3 uo siis yaiym odau Asso|d Jayyoue adnpoud j,uop asea|d 1Ng

S9I3IUNWIWOD |BD0| J0J 4O ¢10] ¥Se
‘A315 oYy ul uiAl| 9jdoad 3unoA 10oj ‘syuspisal 104 ‘sadulIpne J0oj ‘S3sile 10} SULIDAIIDP 101295 =13
Jou sem onb sn31e1s oyl 3ey3 UoIHUS0I3Y *23ueyd 104 JIS9p SU0I3S B S| 249U L S

PIP 3BYM

SjUIRJ}SDI [RIDURUL JURDIIUSIS
audsap ‘@Aalyde 03 SUINUIIUOD SI pue ‘PaA3IYDde Sey YINowsuiod 1eym ul aprid [eay

aAnIsod Ajjessauag sem ssado.d 03 yoeqpaa4

10379s 2y} Wo.j ydeqpas-




suolque paJeys Inoge 3q pjnoys i ‘UsaALIp epuage 2 Jou pjnoys A3a1e.13S

yinos papiroad-[[am ay3 Joj 3snf 10U ‘Ynowisyiod 40 9joym ay3 104 2q p|nNoys 3l puy

24n3|nd> yum pagedus Apeadje aie oym sjdoad asoy3 3snl j0u ‘QuohiaAs Joj 2q pInoys

SJ101ISIA 404 3sn[ 30U ‘Yinowsyiod jo ajdoad ay3 404 2q pinoys

£31> 3y3 ul suonesiuegdio SUnISIXS WOl Aeme Spuny pue sa24n0saJ 3.3 30U ISn|Al

paA3Iyde Apealje aABY 9M 3BYM UO p|Ing Isn

yInowisiod o mala 2dA1oa1a3s ay3 a3uajjeyd

Juspuadapuy

|leuonedidsul pue pjog

:£31) 9y} 10} £393e43S [RAN}ND DANIN} VY

k391115
[ean3ind

2.Mn{ v




ol

*Aouagun JO J911BW B se swiealls 3uipuny mau A4auapl asnwi A3 ayl

S Tb)
93 J0 sued ul Juswa3de3ua [_aN}Nd MO| pUB SPIAIP YINOS/YHOoU IN0ge UIddU0D [BaYy

3uipuny pue uoeloge|od 10} saiiuniioddo
3uissiw aJe am 3ey) Jo3uep — uonieulplo-o0d pue guiuue|d apim-A31D w3 SUO| JO XdeT

paonpad st uipuny uaym Apendied ‘spiemul sndo) 03 Aouapuai e |[13s - SUBIOM OJIS

sdiysiauynied aaneioqe||od
9J0W 2q 03} Spaau a3y} — Jood s| Ajjeuoiieu pue Ajjeuoidal y3oq SuiyJ0MIaU JSPIAA

uoneindal spIM-plJOM SIU3 UO pjing 01 pasu
9M pue 3[1j04d [eUOIIRUISIUI PUB [BUOIIRU JURDIHIUBIS B SBY 49440 [BJn}Nd S,A1D Sy

S19SSE [eJn3|Nd S} JO 2J0oW 9w 03 Spasu Yinowsliod

:3ey} Juawaaage peodq si 43y L

A391:.11S
[en3inD

24Nri{




1%

94N3NJ DAI3RID pUB [BdN}ND S} 104 AYjiqisuodsal 9ye3 3snwl |95 AJd 9Y3 Usayy
9J04 diysiapes| aAdeold e apiaoid 03 uoisod e ul jou st [1DUNOD AD Y3 I pUY -

paJinbau si 1eyy 23ueyd dais aya
opiaoad 03 Sul08 30U S1 onb sN1L1S JUDLIND Y3 ‘DAIRIHUI MU B 10J pa3U B Sl 9J43Y] .

SIY3 JaA19p 03 Sul08 s1 oym Ing

A31> 3Y3 Ul saLIsNpul 9A13BID 3Y3 JO JuaWdo[aAp 9y} 98e4nodug .

suonesiuedlo paseq-Aunwwod pue [eanyjnd Jojjews Joj yoddng

$92.N0S Sulpuny Mau dojun

A31> s1y3 ul paaaiyde 3ulaq si yeym 4o 3)1404d ay3 asied 03 Aoed0ApY .
sy9lold 2AneIOgE||0) J0) JHoddns .

S)JOMIDU [BUOIBUIDIUI pUB [BUOI}RU ‘|euoiZal mau dojaAaq .

Suiuue|d apim-A31D) 23euIpl0-0)

:01 diysiapea 218938415

si1eak G 3xau 10} sa13LIoLId

S9RUOL




[4°

*saiunyioddo s31 ‘1910 jeunyjnd sy ‘98elay
s} ‘uonisod anbiun s,yinowsiiod 03 puodsad pue 3AIDURSIP 9 P|NOYS dAIBRIULINQ -

3ng diysiapea| 21833e43s apiro.ad
0} saiuedwod diysiaulied jeanyjnd dn }9s aAey 3ey3 S913D J19YI0 WOL} uled| ued A\

9|qeuleisns Ajjediwouody

9|qissod se aAlsuadxaul sy .

adedspue| Suidueyd 1aA3 ue 03 puodsal 03 y3nous 3|qixd|4

JUBIDY4 pue YSIT

Juspuadapuy

:3q 3snwi )1 diysiapea| d1893e43s apinoad 03 uonesiuesio MauU B 9383 0} dJe dM §|

SANENIUI

Mo\ Y




€1

A31> 343 Ul 10323S |_Un3|nNd 3y} Jo 3j1404d Y3 siey

Ajjleusa1xs pue A1d ay3 uiyum yroq ‘sdiysssuried mau dojaasqg

Ayd> 3y3 Ul SOAN J0 Joquuinu
9431 Mmo.3 03 saAienul 1oddns pue Suipuny Jo sa21nos mau dojaaa(

SIUDAD DU0ISI[ILW pue SaAIeI}IUI MaU ue|d 03 10123S 91 YHM YJOAA

dupjiomiau pue
Suisieapuny ‘Suiuue]d y3nodya ‘saniunwiwod pasijeurdiew ysow ay3 1oddns

o|doad BunoA 3s3uowe Apendiied ‘QuawdojaAap 3siide 93einodud A[2AIDY

10123S 93U} MOJ3 pue sa143SNpul 9AI3EID SY3 4O Jusawdo|2A3p Y3 UO SND04

Suiuue|d jeanynd wua3-3uo| aroiduw

:0] S93e3.D) YInowisyiod pajjed Auedwod diysiaulried [eanyjnd mau e dn 39S

suoljepuswwiodoy

suonepuswil.iNdaYy




14!

Jusuewwad si 31 Jayiaym 3uipidap a4042q 1aloud eak § Ajjeniu) -ajgerswiy
sdiysuaajul pue syuswaded 1oy saiziunyioddo spiaoad pjnoys “Sulured

|e89| pue [joJ4Aed se yons suoildpuny 9d1440
ypeq Joddns os|e pjno) *suonesiued.o [ednynd yum sdeytad uneioy 3uisoH

AIA110B M3U I19A0D 03 € puk T seak ul uiseaJdul ‘L Jeak ul MoSLF Ajjeniul 393png
Jo3eue|y yuswdoaAsQ ssauisng pue 10323J1Q :DAIND9XT

5319 ulpun4 ‘swinasny ‘quawdojaAs 1siy ojdwexa 104 ‘S9a3wwod AIoSIApY
Jieyd yuspuadapul ‘opyoad ySiH

*s1A0€ Jopun s993snJy T *staunied [epueuly wod) sdad uipnpul ‘S993SNJ3 TL WNWIXE|A|

219 1ods
‘wslunoy ‘y3jeay ‘uonednpa ‘ssauisng ‘10329S |edn3|Nd WO UMBIP pleog 9A13de0.d

Isnay o|gellieyd v

S91E2.D

UInowisiod




!

2u0A12A3 Aq pakolua aq ubd yoiym

12JJ0 SSD|I-pl41OM D Y3Im K312 D “‘UOIIpAOUUI puD A3IAI3D3ID Aipulpaopaixa Jo A310 b mou

SI Y3NoWwiS1.10d 3bY3 33D3SUOWIP [[IM 3] * ***A3IA130D [pan3nd fO a3upd UIIX3 pUD 3SIIAIP
p ‘Aolua pup ‘ui a3pdid13apd 03 A31Unjioddo ay3 spy A310 ay3 Ul aUOAIDAS 3DY3 21NSUI 03
101235 [DIN1[ND 3Y31 Yyum Ajasod Suiydom Aq pup saliasnpul aA11pald ayi Jo auawdojanap
ay3 3unuoddns Ag a3p31uay pup s3UWIAIYID AIpUIpIODbIIXa S,A310 3y3 Uo p[ing

[[IM 1] *A312 3Y3 SSOJID 10323S 3AIIDAID Y3 Ul SUlyJOM SUoIIpsiup3Io pub ajdoad 3ioddns

03 AJjpoif10ads dn 3as diysiauiipd 21321p.43s Juapuadapul Mau p****Sa3palD) YINOWISIIO0




7 AW

Portsmouth...a city of doers, a city of makers, a city of creativity and innovation...

with a world-class cultural offer which can be enjoyed by everyone!

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Culture and City Development Decision Meeting

Date of meeting: 19 July 2019

Subject: Annual Libraries and Archive Update Reports 2019-20
Report by: Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services
Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

11

1.2

21

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

224

2.2.5

Purpose of report

To update and inform the Cabinet Member for Culture and City Development of
the work carried out by the Portsmouth Library and Archive Services in the last
twelve months, i.e. 2018/19 as identified in the Libraries and Archive Annual
Update Report 2018.

To make recommendations for additional actions to be undertaken in
Portsmouth Libraries and Archives in line with the Business Plan and city council
priorities for the period 2019/20.

Recommendations

That the updates and progress on activity from the Portsmouth Libraries
and Archives Annual Update Report 2018/19, shown at 3 be noted.

That the following actions be delivered by Libraries and Archives in
2019/20:

Development and delivery of a Library Strategy to cover the period 2020 -
2025 to inform activity and priorities.

Development and launch of the independent Public Libraries, School
Library Service and Archive Service website.

Refurbishment of services at Cosham Library in association with
structural repairs planned for winter 2020.

Stock review to include purchase allocation and presentation of stock.

Delivery of pilot project for the Summer Reading Challenge Plus, evaluate
and report.

Pade 29



2.2.6

2.2.7

2.2.8

2.2.9

2.2.10

2.2.11

2.2.12

31

3.2

3.3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Explore options for library management system consortia, working with
Southampton and the Isle of Wight. Evaluate and report.

Deliver the second and final year of the City of Stories Project funded by
Arts Council England. This project is shared equally by The Conan Doyle
Project and Libraries and Archives. This is a two year project to the value
of £140,000.

Continue delivery of the Libraries Health and Wellbeing Project funded by
the Public Health Transformation fund. This is year two of a four year
project to the value of £174,000.

Completion and delivery of the Archive Outreach Policy.

Relocation and set up of the Photographic store at the Central Library.
Re-submission of Archive Accreditation.

Deliver annual budget savings as required.

Background

Public Libraries and the Archive Service are both statutory services. The
Schools Library Services is not statutory and operates as a Traded Service
which is self-funding via service level agreements with local schools to provide
library and project lending collections and reader development support
initiatives.

To ensure the consistency and quality of the public library offer across the UK,
Libraries Connected, a sector support organisation with Arts Council England
funding, is currently reviewing the universal offers and commitment that define
the public library role in the UK. The draft Universal Offers are subject to stage 2
consultation but are expected to be:

Reading

Information and digital
Health and Wellbeing
Cultural and creativity

Specific commitment to children and the vision impaired is embedded across all
these offers.

Archive Service, priorities and aims are identified by National Archives, as:

o Providing excellent access to records for all
o Security and protection of the collections
o Conservation of the collections.

Page 30



3.4

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.54

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

These commitments sit alongside the Portsmouth City Council aims and the
Culture and City Development Business Plan in determining the Libraries and
Archives operational priorities and actions.

Below, are brief update reports on the works completed during the last twelve
months and an identification of the works that are still outstanding or requiring
further action in the year ahead.

Delivery of the Libraries Health and Wellbeing Project funded by the Public
Health Transformation fund. This is a four year project to the value of
£174,000

Update: Health and Wellbeing Zones have now been provided in all Portsmouth
Libraries. A programme of drop-in support sessions is in place and will be
extended to all libraries, calling on the use of volunteers, over the final two years
of the project as funding is reduced and the activities mainstreamed.

Delivery of the City of Stories Project funded by Arts Council England. This
project is shared equally by The Conan Doyle Project and Libraries and
Archives. This is a two year project to the value of £140,000

Update: The first year of the project has been successfully delivered, providing
"A Summer of Sherlock" and significant additional initiatives targeting hard to
reach groups working with the Conan Doyle collection. The funding has provided
a "Story Centre" initiative for early years and primary children centred on the
north group libraries, work with the archive of the theme of popular music, story
writing workshops and competitions for all ages, a "One City Read" for 2018 and
work on a graphic novel style adaption of "Study in Scarlett". The project has
enabled work with creative providers in the city and wider region, creating more
resilient networks. Staff and providers have also benefited from experiencing
and engagement with best practice and innovative ideas from elsewhere in the
UK. An interim report was submitted and accepted by Arts Council England in
spring 2019.

Delivery and evaluation of innovative projects to extend the reach of the
annual Summer Reading Challenge to hard to reach groups and all that do
not currently use a library.

Update: The 2018 challenge was successfully delivered, increasing the number
of participants and reach compared to previous years. This was reported to the
Portfolio Meeting, 5" October 2018. "Mischief Makers: The Summer Reading
Challenge 2018". Further targeted initiatives are included in the
recommendations of this report. See 2.2.5

Delivery of Universal Credit, to be rolled out across the city from
September 2018.

Update: This is ongoing with new applicants now receiving Universal Credit, but
the roll out is delayed for many existing resident, in line with a national steer. It is
anticipated that work will continue in 2020 working with support services in the
city.

Pagde 31



3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.5.8

41

4.2

4.3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Work with Civica/Spydus to develop the work to migrate the Archive
catalogue to Spydus 10

Update: This has been successfully achieved, but some amendments are
required to ensure pictorial images are presented to avoid illegal downloads.

Development of the Archive Outreach Policy

Update: This is currently in development. It will draw on the experience and
knowledge gained from the outreach project work currently in delivery for "City of
Stories" also from regional training and visits to other Archive services currently
delivering best practice in the UK. The policy will be completed in 2019/20 and
will be submitted as an individual report to the Portfolio meeting for consideration.

Explore alternative library management systems for the School Library
service and its clients

Update: School Library Service has been undertaking soft market testing with a
number of different systems over the last twelve months. There are an
increasing number of systems that meet the needs of small to medium size
school libraries and locally, some schools have changed their systems.
However, these products do not meet the current and future business needs of
the School Library Service, who will continue to explore alternatives.

Deliver annual budget saving as required
Update: Savings were achieved as required.

Reasons for recommendations
Reasons are set against each recommendation below.

Development and delivery of a Library Strategy to cover the period 2020 -
2025 to inform activity and priorities.

To agree and present a strategy which clarifies the priorities for the services over
the next 5 years, to inform yearly operational plans and spend. The strategy will
reflect the views and requirements of PCC aims and objectives, those of
customers, stakeholders and staff.

Development and launch of the independent Public Libraries, School
Library Service and Archive Service website

To provide better digital access to the offers of all three services by service users.
Supporting the Schools Library Service traded service model and promoting and
extending the range and visibility of all virtual services and promotional outreach
offers for all three.

Refurbishment of services at Cosham Library in association with structural
repairs planned for winter 2020

Cosham remains the largest Portsmouth Library off the island, but has suffered
from a decline in use and issues over the last five years. The library will be closed
for structural refurbishments winter 2019/20 and this will provide an opportunity to
work with customers and staff to identify how the children's library, computer
access and arrangement of stock can be improved within existing budgets.

Pagé 32



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

4.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Changes would seek to provide space for a small performance venue off the
island and maximise use of the building, stock and equipment.

Stock review to include purchase allocation and presentation of stock
To maximise use of existing book fund to meet community need for information,
learning and recreation.

Delivery of pilot project for the Summer Reading Challenge Plus, evaluate
and report.

A pilot scheme to test a new model for delivering the Summer Reading Challenge
to reach targeted children are unlikely to be supported by parents and carers to
undertake the challenge during the summer holiday.

Explore options for library management system consortia, working with
Southampton and the Isle of Wight. Evaluate and report.

To explore options for potential cost savings on future contracts and opportunities
for sharing of resources.

Deliver the second and final year of the City of Stories Project funded by
Arts Council England. This project is shared equally by The Conan Doyle
Project and Libraries and Archives. This is a two year project to the value of
£140,000

To continue to meet our commitment to Arts Council England funding
requirements and our own priorities to support literacy, access to the archive and
develop the tradition of Portsmouth as a home of great writers and writing.

Continue delivery of the Libraries Health and Wellbeing Project funded by
the Public Health Transformation fund. This is year two of a four year
project to the value of £174,000

Recommended in order to continue to meet our commitment to the Public Health
Transformation Fund, to support and improve the health and wellbeing of
residents and to deliver the Libraries universal offer to support health and
wellbeing

Completion and delivery of the Archive Outreach Policy

Recommended to meet our commitment under Archive Accreditation, ensuring
access and promotion of archive holdings. This is needed to develop a sense of
ownerships and engagement by residents and local communities.

Relocation and set up of the Photographic store at the Central Library

This is recommended to provide a more suitable environment for photographic
storage to aid preservation. The climate control needs to be set colder and dryer
for photographs, than for other paper archive. This relocation will free space for
future growth in the main Southsea Repository where climate controls can be
slightly relaxed, offering a modest saving and less pressure on the equipment.

Re-submission of Archive Accreditation

Page 33



412

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Recommended to maintain accreditation to ensure good practise in all areas of

archive delivery. Also obtaining the support and access on best practice, provided
by National Archives.

Deliver annual budget saving as required
To meet city council requirements.

Equality impact assessment

There is no requirement for an EIA for the overall report, however the
following actions need to be noted for specific recommendations:

Development and delivery of a Library Strategy to cover the period 2020 -
2025 to inform activity and priorities.

A full EIA will be worked on as the work progresses - to be completed before the
strategy is signed off.

Development and launch of the independent Public Libraries, School
Library Service and Archive Service website

An EIA is being worked on will be completed when the specifications and
requirements for the website are identified with the contractor

Refurbishment of services at Cosham Library in association with
structural repairs planned for winter 2020

A full EIA is being worked on in conjunction with the work for this project and will
be submitted before the works are undertaken

Delivery of pilot project for the Summer Reading Challenge Plus, evaluate
and report

A full EIA has previously been submitted for the summer reading challenge. This
will be revisited, to understand if the findings of the pilot change the original
conclusions.

Stock review to include purchase allocation and presentation of stock.
An EIA assessment will be undertaken to accompany this work stream.

Completion and delivery of the Archive Outreach Policy
When developed this policy will be the subject of a separate Decision Report to
the Culture, Leisure and Sport Portfolio along with an EIA assessment.

Deliver annual budget saving as required

Budget savings proposals will be subject to EIA assessment when identified and
agreed later in the year.

Pagé 34



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

6. Legal implications

6.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from the recommendations in this
report. However, Legal Services will advise and assist as required in the context
of the individual proposed actions listed as they are implemented.

7. Director of Finance's comments
The recommendations contained in this report will be implemented within the
existing approved budget resources of the Library Service.

S|gned by ........................................
Stephen Baily
Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Appendices: None

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ..o ON e

Slgned by ........................................
Cabinet Member for Culture and City Development

Pade 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Culture & City Development Decision Meeting

Date of meeting: 19 July 2019

Subject: Archive Management Policies

Report by: Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Full council decision: No

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The report presents three policies for approval: the Archives Care and
Conservation Policy, the Archives Collections Information Policy, and the
Archives Access Policy. Report clarifies the legislation governing archive
standards and legislation.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the Portfolio Holder for Culture and City Development accepts the
Archives Collections Care and Conservation Policy for implementation

2.2 That the Portfolio Holder for Culture and City Development accepts the
Archives Collections Information Policy for implementation.

2.3 That the Portfolio Holder for Culture and City Development accepts the
Archives Access Policy for implementation

3.0 Background

3.1 Archive provision is governed by the following legislation:

Local Government (Records) Act 1962
Local Government Act 1972 (section 224)
Public Records Act 1958 and 1967

The Manorial Document Rules 1959 and Tithe (Copies of Apportionment)
Rules 1960

e The Parochial Registers and Records Measure 1978 (amended 1992)

These policies were first approved in July 2015, as part of preparations for
our successful application to become an 'Accredited’ archive service. They
were due to be reviewed and submitted again for approval in June 2019. The

Page 37



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

policies have been reviewed and are now submitted for approval. They will
help to confirm our status as an Accredited archive service.

Reasons for recommendations

Collections Care and Conservation Policy: The provision of appropriate
storage and preventative and remedial conservation are crucial to the long-
term preservation of the archives in our care. The policy provides a basis for
plans and procedures for the care and conservation of the collections which
conform to current national standards. These will enable the preservation of
the collections so that they can be accessed and enjoyed by future
generations.

Collections Information Policy: The gathering and recording of information
about the archive collections, including full documentation, is crucial to the
physical and intellectual control of the collections. The policy provides a basis
for plans and procedures which conform to current national standards for the
gathering and recording of collections information. These will enable people to
identify accurately which documents they would like to use for study and
enjoyment.

Access Policy: The policy for access to the archive collections, on-site, off-
site and on-line, which conforms to current national standards for public
access as well as for the long-term preservation of the collections, forms a
basis for the development of plans and procedures to enable access to these
collections, the written memory of the people of Portsmouth.

Equality impact assessment

A preliminary EIA has been completed.

Legal comments

The proposed policies will enable to Council to continue to fulfil its duties
under the relevant legislation. The details of this are set out in the body of this
report and as appropriate within the text of the policies.

Director of Finance's comments

The recommendations contained in this report will be implemented within the
existing approved budget resources of the Library Service.

Page 38



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

S|gned by ............................................................
Stephen Baily
Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Appendices:

A. Archive Collections: Access Policy

B. Archive Collections: Collections Care and Conservation Policy
C. Archive Collections: Collections Information Policy

D. Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act
1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied
upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

Archive Development and Policies https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk
report, approved at the Culture, /documents/g3170/Public%20reports
Leisure and Sport Decision Meeting %20pack%2010th-Jul-

on 10 July 2015 2015%2009.00%20Cabinet%20Mem

ber%20for%20Culture%20Leisure%
20and%20Sport.pdf?T=10

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/
deferred/ rejected by ... (o] o P

Signed by:

Cabinet Member for Culture and City Development

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Preliminary assessment form 2018

www.portsmouthccg.nhs.uk www.portsmouth.gov.uk

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

I identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

m How are going to mitigate or remove any potential negative impacts
1 opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

I prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

0 justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

—

Directorate: @ity development and culture

—/

Service, function: @_ibrary and Archive Service

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

Cl'he Archives Access Policy, the Archives Care and Conservation Policy, and the Archives Collections )
Information Policy

- J

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

(Y s
\\t/\ Existing

'R
\\ /\ New / proposed

() Changed
—/
Page 41



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

The policies provide a basis for plans and procedures to enable access to the archive collections, for
the care and conservation of the collections, and for the gathering and recording of collections
information.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

Users of the archive collections on-site, off-site and on-line - Portsmouth residents and users further
afield (regionally, nationally and internationally).

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Poisr::’:clt 1o Unclear

Age *
Disability

Race

Sex

Gender reassignment
Sexual orientation
Religion or belief
Pregnancy and maternity

Marriage & civil partnership

VRS IR VR VR R SR R VA B VR R VY

Other excluded groups

Note:Other excluded groups examples includes,Homeless, rough sleeper and unpaid carers. Many
forms of exclusion are linked to financial disadvantage. How will this change affect people on low
incomes, in financial crisis or living in areas of greater deprivation?

If the answer is "negative" or "unclear" consider doing a full EIA

If there are any potential negative impacts on any of the protected characteristics, What have
you put in place to mitigate or remove the negative impacts/barriers?

Page 42

No potential negative impacts are foreseen



C )

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups? e.g. A new service has been created for people with a disability to
help them gain employment this would mean that this helps promote equality for the protected
characteristic of disability only.

Age

Disability

Race

Sex

Gender reassignment

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

Pregnancy or maternity

Marriage & civil partnership

@
8
@
8
)
)
[
o
@
o

£ €3 HES ESNEIREI LN EESRED
OO0 LAOLLIO L]

Other excluded groups

If the answer is "no" or "unclear"” consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Please add in the text boxes below what feedback / meetings you have attended for each specific
protected characteristic

Age Data re the age of our users is collected in periodic national surveys of archive service users

Disability Data re any disabilities of our users is collected in periodic national surveys of archive service
users

Data re the ethnicity of our users is collected in periodic national surveys of archive service
users

Race

Sex Data re the sex of our R&gﬁodb&ed in periodic national surveys of archive service users




Gender reassignment No data is collected re gender reassignment

Sexual orientation No data is collected re sexual orientation
Religion or belief No data is collected re religion or belief
Pregnancy and maternity No data is collected re pregnancy and maternity

Marriage & civil partnership  |No data is collected re marriage and civil partnership

Other excluded groups No data is collected

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

PCC staff-If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you
require help Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email:equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CCG staff-If you have to complete a full EIA please email: sehccg.equalityanddiveristy@nhs.net if you
require help

Q7 - How have you come to this decision? Summarise your findings and conclusion below

These policies provide a basis for staff to develop services continuously, in line with feedback and user
needs, to broaden access and inclusion. New services are evaluated through an EIA when being
planned.

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Michael Gunton (Senior Archivist) and Jackie Painting (Assistant Library and Archive Services
Manager)

This EIA has been approved by: Lindy Elliott (Library and Archive Services Manager)

Contact number: 023 9268 8058

Date: 14 June 2019

PCC staff-Please email a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact
you with any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.
Telephone: 023 9283 4789, Email: equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CCG staff-Please email a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality lead who will contact you with any
comments or queries about your preliminary . Email: sehccg.equalityanddiversity@nhs.net
age 44




1.1

2.0

21

3.0

31

4.0

41

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Appendix A
Archive Collections - Access Policy
Introduction
Portsmouth City Council's shared aim is to:

Make Portsmouth a place that is fairer for everyone: a city where the council works
together with thriving communities to put people at the heart of everything we do.

The community we serve
We serve a diverse community of users:
e Those who deposit records with us.

Those who visit Portsmouth History Centre - the people of Portsmouth and
visitors from all over the world.

e Those who seek our help by email, post, and telephone.

e School children and students on-site and off-site.

e Community groups

e Portsmouth City Council staff who use the archive collections in the course of
their work.

Legislation

In our provision of access to the archive collections (and possible restrictions an
access) we will comply with all relevant legislation, including Freedom of
Information and Data Protection legislation

Customer care

We seek to welcome all users and potential users, whatever their level of education,
religious beliefs, ethnicity, disability, age, gender or sexual orientation.

We will respect the different needs of all our stakeholders: depositors, researchers,
and others.

Access

We will provide access to the archive collections at Portsmouth History Centre and
off-site at other locations in Portsmouth. We will develop new ways for people to
access the collections remotely as technology allows.

We will facilitate access to the collections by the production, and maintenance, of
catalogues, lists, and guides to the material.

We will regularly consult users to assess their opinions of our services,and how we
might develop these in the future. We will seek the opinions of non-users as
opportunities allow, for instance when staff give talks and when we participate in
events off-site.

Pade 45



5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

71

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

9.1

When consulting with users and non-users we will seek to identify any barriers to
access, and will explore ways to address these, and implement as opportunity
allows.

In order to make people aware of the archive collections and to promote our
services we will encourage and facilitate the use of the archive collections in
publications, exhibitions, outreach, on-site, off-site and on-line.

Access and the need to ensure the long-term preservation of the archive
collections

The archive collections are unique and irreplaceable. We will preserve them so that
future users will enjoy them as we do, but also to make the collections accessible to
users now.

We will enforce measures to prevent theft and damage to the collections whether in
storage, produced to the public in Portsmouth History Centre or elsewhere, or used
in exhibitions or displays.

Provided that copying will not damage the document or infringe legislation in any
way, we will provide copies (photocopy, microfilm, scanned images, etc) of the
collections requested by members of the public.

Where appropriate we will issue surrogate copies, rather than the original
documents, to users in Portsmouth History Centre or elsewhere, in order to
minimise the risk of damage to the original documents.

We will make all users aware of these regulations and the reasons underlying
them.

Other access restrictions

When archives are deposited with the Library and Archive Service we will agree any
access restrictions with the depositor.

We will enforce any access restrictions resulting from legislation eg Data
Protection legislation.

We will communicate all access restrictions to users.
The opening hours of Portsmouth History Centre

We will advertise the opening hours of Portsmouth History Centre, and any closures
for Bank Holidays etc, on-site, off-site and on-line.

We will monitor feedback from our users on all access issues, including opening
hours, in conjunction with feedback on the Central Library.

Fees and charges

We will charge for the provision of copies in any format, and for responding to
email, telephone and postal enquiries.

Page 46



1.0

31

3.2

3.3

3.4

Appendix B

Archive Collections
Collections Care and Conservation Policy

Our strategic approach
Portsmouth City Council's shared aim is to:

Make Portsmouth a place that is fairer for everyone: a city where the council works
together with thriving communities to put people at the heart of everything we do.

By our care and conservation of the archive collections we can ensure that
residents, visitors and remote users both now and in the future can enjoy them and
learn from them about the history of our city and all who have lived here.

Our responsibility for the collections

The collections in our care are a unique and irreplaceable record of the lives of the
people of Portsmouth from the fifteenth century to the present. It is our responsibility
to make these records accessible for education and enjoyment and also to preserve
them for future generations. Care and conservation are key aspect of our
stewardship of these collections.

Care and conservation standards we will follow
Storage of, and access to, archives is covered by legislation as follows:

Public Records Act 1958, as amended 1967

Manorial Document Rules 1959 and 1967

Tithe Document Rules 1960 and 1963

Local Government (Records) Acts 1962

Local Government Act 1972

The Parochial Registers and Records Measure 1978 (amended 1992).
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Freedom of Information Act 2000

Current Data Protection legislation

We will manage the care and conservation of the collections according to the
International Council on Archives code of ethics for archivists

In determining our approach to collections care and conservation, we will follow the
guidelines BS EN 16893:2018 and PAS198:2012, and the Benchmarks in
Collection Care.

We will aim to minimise the need for remedial conservation by acting to prevent
damage occurring while items are in storage, being accessed by members of the
public, or on display. This will underpin everything we do: from security measures
and the storage of the collections to how we make them accessible, and the use of
surrogates.

Pade 47



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The impact of collections care and conservation on all aspects of the service
Security

Through building design and procedures to be followed by staff, public and
volunteers, we will ensure that Portsmouth History Centre and the archive stores
are secure against theft and damage by individuals or by 'natural’ threats such as
fire and flood. We will monitor the effectiveness of these measures and update and
improve them as required.

Buildings and storage

In collaboration with Building Services and other PCC staff we will regularly monitor
the condition of the buildings where the archive collections are stored and made
accessible to the public. Building Services and any other relevant authorities will be
notified as soon as any issues of concern are identified and swift action sought.
Packaging

When they are received, accessioned and catalogued, newly received items will be
assessed and packaged appropriately. The packaging needs of existing items will
be assessed when they are produced to the public and returned to storage.
Environmental control

We will maintain a stable environment (temperature and humidity) within
professionally accepted parameters in all storage areas.

Environmental monitoring

We will monitor the temperature and humidity in the storage areas and take action
if the temperature and humidity fall outside professionally accepted parameters.

Housekeeping

We will ensure that storage areas are kept clean, tidy and uncluttered, and that
routine maintenance of services is carried out.

Access (handling, surrogates, reprographics, exhibitions, etc.)

We will only allow access to the collections if this will not compromise their safety
and preservation.

When documents are produced to the public or used in exhibitions, all necessary
steps will be taken to ensure that they are not damaged or lost.

Where possible will use surrogates (e.g. photographs, photocopies, microfilm, and
digital copies) to reduce the risk of damaging the original items.

Page 48



4.8

49

410

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0

71

Digital preservation

Wherever possible we will ensure that 'born digital' and other digital records in our
care remain accessible, collaborating with others and sharing knowledge and
experience in this fast developing field.

Disaster recovery and continuity

We will address any 'disaster' using the Emergency Recovery Plan. This plan is
intended to ensure a swift response to any disaster so that damage to collections is
minimised and service to all users is resumed as soon as possible.

Remedial conservation

We will assess the need for remedial conservation by regular surveys and by
monitoring documents requested by the public. We will prioritise documents for
conservation by assessing the degree of damage and the need for production.

Professional conservation support

We will seek professional conservation support as appropriate in order to ensure
the long-term care and conservation of the collections.

Communicating collections care and conservation issues to staff, users, and
other interested parties

We will train new staff in the care and conservation of the archive collections, and
brief all staff about new developments in this field as they occur.

We will induct all users into our procedures for handling the collections, and the
reasons that underlie these procedures.

When giving talks and presentations about the collections we will include
information about care and conservation issues.

We will advise members of the public who contact us about how to care for any
archives in their possession.

Date of this policy and when it will be reviewed

This policy was approved by Culture, Leisure and Sport Executive on [...]. The
policy will be reviewed and submitted again for approval in June 2022.

Pagde 49



This page is intentionally left blank



2.0

21

2.2

2.3

Appendix C
Archive Collections Care - Collections Information Policy

The relationship between Portsmouth City Council's shared aim and our
collecting and recording of information

Portsmouth City Council's shared aim is to:

Make Portsmouth a place that is fairer for everyone: a city where the council works
together with thriving communities to put people at the heart of everything we do.

By collecting and recording collections information efficiently and in accordance with
professionally accepted standards, we can give residents and visitors access to
records of our city and the people who have helped to create it over the centuries.

The information we will record
On transfer/deposit

When the deposit is received (either at Portsmouth History Centre or off-site) we will
record:

e the name, address and contact telephone number and/or email address of

the depositor

a brief description of the deposit

the extent of the deposit

the condition of the deposit (good/fair/etc)

any background information relevant to the deposit, including, in the case of

digital records, any technical information pertaining to the deposit

e whether the depositor is the copyright holder and if so whether they transfer
copyright to the Library and Archive Service or allow us to use the deposit for
certain purposes (to be described). If the depositor is not the copyright holder,
do they know who is?

e whether the deposit is a donation, a long-term/indefinite loan, or a purchase

e conditions of disposal (eg the depositor's permission to dispose)

¢ the date of deposit

When the deposit is accessioned

We will record the information set out at 2.1, and the location, the accession
number and deposit number. This information will be recorded on Spydus.

When the deposit is catalogued we will:

e describe each item (or group of items) individually in accordance with ISAD(G)

e give each a reference which shows its relationship with the other items in the
deposit (and with items in the rest of the collection, if material has already been
passed to us by the same depositor)

e record that it is catalogued on a central record (eg Spydus)

e record who catalogued the deposit and when

e record the location of the deposit

Pade 51



2.4

3.0

31

3.2

4.0

5.0

6.0

note any access restrictions

note any copyright restrictions, including the copyright holder(s) if known
any relevant notes about how the deposit has been arranged

note any conservation needs

We may also record further information about the history or activities of the
depositor.

On disposal
If an item is selected for disposal we will record:

the reason(s) for its disposal

the method of disposal eg passing to another record office

the date of disposal

the name of the staff member making the decision and carrying out the disposal
that we have permission to dispose

Intellectual property rights

Legislation regarding intellectual property rights will be monitored and
implications for any collections will be recorded

Cataloguing standards
Legal and other requirements

We will comply with all relevant legislation, including Data Protection and Freedom
of Information legislation, and the Environmental Information Regulations.

The ethical code we will follow
We will follow the International Council on Archives code of ethics for archivists.
Information retrieval

We will provide and maintain an information retrieval system in accordance with
ISAD(G).

Vital records

Maintenance of collections information in the event of a disaster is covered in the
Emergency Plan.

Legacy issues
The keeping of collections information has become fuller and more systematic since
the Record Office was established in 1960. Where possible, collections information

for individual collections will be brought up to current standards as part of the
Collections Information Plan, in accordance with ISAD(G).

Page 52



7.0

8.0

9.0

User input into collections information

Input and feedback from users (depositors and researchers) will be used to amend
and improve collections information. Any proposed changes will be recorded and
assessed by staff as they are received, and any judged worthwhile will be
implemented as part of the Collections Information Plan.

Resolving issues of collection status (ownership, intellectual property rights,
relevant legislation and guidelines)

Any assertion of changed ownership or intellectual property rights must be
adequately supported in writing (including proof of identity) before it can be
considered. Any such issues will be resolved by the Senior Archivist in consultation
with other PCC staff and with archive institutions elsewhere (including the National
Archives). All relevant records will be amended to reflect any changes.

Date of this policy and when it will be reviewed

This policy was approved by Culture and Leisure Executive on [...]. The policy will
be reviewed and submitted again for approval in June 2022.

Pagde 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Agenda item:
Title of meeting: Culture and City Development Decision Meeting
Date of meeting: 19 July 2019
Subject: Portsmouth Museums Annual Update
Report by: Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services
Wards affected: All
Key decision: No
Full Council No
decision:
1. Purpose of report

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

To review the achievements of Portsmouth Museums in 2018/19 and to present the
service’s operational ‘Plan on a Page’ (PoP) for the following financial year.

Recommendations

The review of last year's activity is noted especially the successful
completion of the first year of operation of The D-Day Story.

Existing service commitments are noted including developing new income
streams to maintain services, delivery of the final phases of the Transforming
the D-Day Museum which ends in February 2021 and delivery of the Landing
Craft Tank project in partnership with the National Museum of the Royal Navy,
also delivery of the Wild about Portsmouth project which will transform
access to the city's natural history collection and work with the newly formed
independent body "Portsmouth Creates™ on future joint cultural strategic
opportunities and projects for the city .

Work towards a co-creation approach to service delivery in which residents
become participants and work alongside staff to shape policies, plans and
activity.

Deliver the Portsmouth revisited exhibition of paintings at Portsmouth
Museum.

Prepare for the celebration of the 75t Anniversary of VE Day in May 2020 and
the 125t Anniversary of municipal museums in Portsmouth in January 2020.

Provide public access to Southsea Lighthouse with the support of Coastal
Revival Fund.

Pade 55
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Background

The D-Day Story opened to the public at the end of March with the formal opening
by HRH Princess Anne in May 2018. The museum has successfully completed its
first full year of operation achieving both visitor and income targets. Visitor surveys
have shown that the response to the new museum is overwhelming positive. This
is echoed by TripAdvisor reviews. In addition The D-Day Story has been nominated
for a number of awards including the prestigious European Museum of the Year
Award 2019. The museum won awards for best guidebook, best children's product
(both Association of Cultural Enterprise awards) and volunteer of the year 2019
(Museum + Heritage awards). The National Lottery funding enabled an exciting
programme of events to be delivered at the museum involving a number of partners
- from Airfix to the National School of Needlework as well as local schools and
colleges. The D-Day Story pop-up museum also attended events such as the
Victorious Festival. Our third and final paid intern was recruited to work with local
community groups on projects commemorating the 75" Anniversary of D-Day and
the Normandy Landings.

The Soldiers of Sacrifice sculpture, created by artist Alfie Bradley, toured significant
locations in the UK and France in March successfully raising the profile of The D-
Day Story. The tour achieved 81 pieces of coverage in the press and 59 broadcast
pieces, achieving a total coverage reach of 1.1 bn.

Museum staff continued to work in partnership with the National Museum of the
Royal Navy (NMRN) on the delivery of the Landing Craft Tank (LCT) project:
resurrecting a D-Day hero. This will see LCT 7074 restored and relocated to
Southsea and open to visitors as part of The D-Day Story. An important role for us
over the last year has been to ensure that the interpretation of the ship and her new
displays reflect the people-focused approach of The D-Day Story. We are also
leading on delivery of the LCT Activity Plan. The Community Participation Officer
who will deliver the plan and the first of two project Apprentices joined the service in
February and March respectively.

At Portsmouth Museum the '"You don't know Sherlock Holmes yet' exhibition opened
in May and an exhibition celebrating 200 years of the Royal Academy in July
(supported by funding from the RA). Smaller displays showcased other aspects of
the city's heritage: archive photographs uncovered by the Paulsgrove Capturing the
Spirit project; the 50" Anniversary of Sir Alec Rose sailing round the world;
decorative items displayed under glass domes. The museum was also a
beneficiary of The National Portrait Gallery's Coming Home initiative which has
seen the original photograph of Isambard Brunel who was born in Portsmouth
displayed in the city. Approval was obtained from the Royal Collections Trust for
the loan of the Veterans' Portraits.

At Southsea Castle the Mary Rose Trust redisplayed the ground floor gallery of the
Keep and new lighting was installed. At Eastney the Gas Engine House Volunteers

Page 56
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

have been facilitated to continue their work with the support of the Community
Project Officer and museum budgets.

The application to the National Lottery Heritage Fund in support of work on the city's
Natural History Collection was successful. Wild about Portsmouth will see
standards of collection care and documentation raised and more public involvement
with the collection. Two project staff were recruited followed by some 20 volunteers.
Storage areas have been reorganised and storage furniture acquired (recycled!)
from a number of sources (including the Natural History Museum, London). Staff
and volunteers are working together to reorganise and catalogue the collections. In
addition the Natural History Curator has raised awareness of the city's Natural
History Collection with local specialists through social media and a launch event in
December 2018. The project also includes funding for events and workshops with
the first of these delivered in October half term.

Other collection focused activity included photography of the sculpture collection as
part of the Art UK project, work on the D-Day Jeep to bring it into full working order
for use at outreach and other events. Staff have also transferred information about
items in the D-Day Collection from donor and other files onto the collections
database. This means that all the information we have about each item in this
collection can be found in one place. Donations were made to the museums
service in 2018/19 including a pair of 1960's Roller Coaster Cars from the "Wild
Mouse' ride at Clarence Pier.

A full marketing plan was implemented during the year with a major focus on the
opening and first year of operation of The D-Day Story. The DDS campaign
consisted of a landmark billboard at Waterloo station, inclusion in the destination
London Underground campaign, advertising across the South Western Railway
network, an outdoor campaign in Portsmouth with posters and banners, promotion
on Big Screens at Guildhall Square and Victorious plus the very successful Soldiers
of Sacrifice campaign. Other marketing for the whole of the service included the
production and distribution of regular event leaflets, limited print advertising, a radio
campaign in the summer months, digital and social media promotion and a number
of group marketing initiatives. Visitor Surveys were undertaken at The D-Day Story,
Portsmouth Museum and Cumberland House.

The percentage increase in Facebook page likes is shown below (and the actual
numbers for January 2018 and 2019 respectively).

Charles Dickens' Birthplace Museum: 9.9% (from 1,202 to 1,321)
Cumberland House: 47.1% (from 986 to 1,450)

The D-Day Story: 17.9% (from 4,580 to 5,402)

Portsmouth Museum: 11.5% (from 4,044 to 4,508)

Southsea Castle: 28.4% (from 1,150 to 1,477)

All sites except Dickens exceeded the 10% target for increase in social media
activity, and Dickens missed out by just 0.1%. There was great percentage growth
from Cumberland House, and good results for both D-Day and Portsmouth
museums given they were starting from much higher baselines.

Pade 57
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



3.10

3.11

3.12

4.1

4.2

4.3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Portsmouth Museums received a total of 311,607 visits in 2018/19, 78,825 (31%)
more than the previous year. The number of visits for each site is shown below.

2017/18 2018/19 Percentage
difference
The D-Day Story *57,486 84,024 +46%
Southsea Castle 126,007 114,575 -9%
Cumberland House 64,590 72,183 +12%
Eastney Beam Engine House 597 562 -6%
Dickens' Birthplace Museum 3,217 3,108 -3%
Portsmouth Museum 42,855 37,155 -13%

* Total for 2016/17 the last full year of operation of the D-Day Museum.

The number of visits for The D-Day Story and Cumberland House is very
encouraging; the visits for Southsea Castle and Portsmouth Museum are a concern.
Closer inspection reveals that Southsea Castle underperformed in April and August
(the numbers for August being 10,823 i.e. 32% down on the previous year) and
Portsmouth Museum performed particularly poorly in June and July (the total for
both months being 5,690 i.e. 43% down on the previous year). April was
particularly cold and wet last year which may explain the underperformance of
Southsea Castle an essentially outdoor venue and June and July were particularly
hot and not ideal for museum visits which will have contributed to the reduced visits
at Portsmouth Museum.

This year the visits at Portsmouth Museum for the first two months are already
2,724(i.e. 44% above last year).

Reasons for recommendations

The recommendations are based on the service plan on a page for the year ahead
(Appendix 1). Planned activities are listed under the six key aims for the service.

Due to the continuing financial pressures faced by the council the Museums service
has to generate additional income of £39,000 pa from 2019/20 in order to maintain
services at current levels. The focus is on under-utilised spaces at Portsmouth
Museum including former office space with a view to making them available for hire
to small businesses. In addition we plan to lower the fees and charges for use of the
Briefing Room at The D-Day Story so it can be used by community groups and
other organisations on a regular basis. Both initiatives will generate income through
rental and secondary spend in the museum shops and cafes.

Although the capital phase of the Transforming the D-Day Museum project is
complete (apart from the outstanding items of snagging), the project Activity Plan
runs until 2020. The main focus for 2019 will be activity to commemorate the 75"
Anniversary of D-Day and the Normandy Landings including completing the D-Day
75 Community Projects, the international D-Day conference and associated activity
for visitors in July, also the writer in residence project culminating in the publication
of a children's story book. In addition the National Lottery Heritage Fund has asked

Pagé 58
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

that we review what the Activity Plan has achieved to date against our original
objectives and to make any adjustments needed to address any areas of weakness.
This gives us the opportunity to ensure that this Activity Plan aligns with that for the
LCT 7074 project as they run over the same period.

The Landing Craft Tank (LCT) project continues. LCT 7074 will be operated as part
of the D-Day Story. She will arrive on site in spring 2020, opening to the public a
few months later. The museums service is leading on the delivery of the project
Activity Plan and preparing for operation of the ship as part of The D-Day Story.
The two D-Day Tanks, previously on display outside the museum will be conserved
as part of this project and displayed on board LCT. Museum staff are also actively
involved in the development of the new displays and supporting Legal Services with
the drafting of the service level agreement with the NMRN.

Volunteers have made an important contribution to the Transforming the D-Day
Museum project and the first year's operation of The D-Day Story. They will play an
even more pivotal role going forward as LCT 'Navigators'; the people responsible
for day-to-day visitor services on board. We need to ensure an effective and
seamless relationship between paid staff and volunteers in order to deliver the high
standards of customer care to which we aspire. This will be a priority for the next
12 months.

The Wild about Portsmouth project will continue as planned with the support of
volunteers and this year we envisage making significant inroads into the historic
documentation backlogs involving the Natural History Collection. This work is
essential if the museums service is to retain Accreditation with Arts Council England
(due for renewal in 2021). A programme of activities will continue to engage people
- from families to specialists - with these collections. This year we will also be
involving museum visitors and other stakeholders in shaping plans for the future
redisplay of the natural history museum (with a view to pursuing external funding in
future years).

Portsmouth Museums has a track-record of engaging community groups with its
work and understands the positive benefits this can have for the people involved. In
the past this type of activity has been project-funded and has ended as soon as the
money ran out. Building on our own good practice and that of other museums we
propose therefore to explore ways of embedding community participation in our
approach to service delivery so it becomes integral to the way the service operates
on a day to day basis. This will also help us to meet the requirements of
Accreditation with Arts Council England (the service is due to re-apply in 2021).

The 'Portsmouth revisited' exhibition will open in September 2019 at Portsmouth
Museum. The original plan was to pair paintings from Portsmouth's Fine Art
Collection with a number of prestigious loans from national and regional institutions
to evoke new and different responses to views of the city. Unfortunately without
additional funding the service is not able to meet the additional security costs
associated with the loans (including constant invigilation). We therefore propose
that the focus of the exhibition will be the city's collection supplemented by works
borrowed from individual lenders.

Page 59
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

4.9 The museums service will plan activities to celebrate the 75 anniversary of VE Day
in May 2020 and the 125" anniversary of the opening of Portsmouth's first
municipal museum in January 2020.

4.10 The council has been awarded £50,000 from the Coastal Revival Fund for a project
to open and interpret the history of the lighthouse to members of the public. The first
phase of work is to cost up the works, then review the budget and investigate
options for additional funding.

4.11 Portsmouth museums will be working with the newly independent organisation
"Portsmouth Creates" in their aspiration of the delivery of the cultural strategy. Initial
discussions illustrate a number of commonalties including opportunities for young
people to be employed in the creative sector, raising a profile for the creative
industries, in addition to working with them on the UK City of Culture bid in 2025.

5. Equality impact assessment (EIA)

5.1 A preliminary EIA has been completed

6. Legal Comments

6.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from the recommendations in this
report. However, Legal Services will advise and assist as required in the context of
specific elements of the Service Plan as they are implemented.

7. Director of Finance comments

7.1 The activities of the Museum Service will continue to be delivered within approved
budgets with specific projects supported by additional grant funding.

S|gned by ........................................
Stephen Baily
Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Pagé 60
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Appendices: Appendix 1 - Portsmouth Museums, Operational Plan on a Page
2018/19
Appendix 2 - Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ... (o] o I

Slgned by ........................................
Cabinet Member for Culture and City Development

Pade 61
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Preliminary assessment form v5 /2013

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

I identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

i prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

I justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

I ™

Director of City development & culture

Directorate:

h.

Function e.g. HR, ‘T\f‘luseums & Visitor Services
IS, carers:

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

Portsmouth Museums - update and operational plan on a page for 2019/20.

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

If‘;jl Existing

|_ -\.I New / proposed

If_\_ll Changed Page 63

M



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

The Plan on a Page (PoP) is the Museum Service's action plan for the year ahead. It includes a
number of projects and activities which deliver the 6 Key Aims of the Museums Strategy. These are:
* Reflect the diversity of the city’s culture and communities in our visitors and offer

* Provide inspirational opportunities for people to enjoy and learn from the collections

* Build the profile and reputation of the Great Waterfront City by showcasing the national and
international heritage of the city, and delivering excellent customer care

* Ensure sustainability and resilience through an entrepreneurial approach to income generation and
partnerships

* Create a learning culture across the service to develop and empower staff

* Develop new audiences using digital technology

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

One of the Key Aims (see first bullet point above) specifically relates to our commitment to access for
all and the museum service being representative of and reflecting the city's communities etc (ie who
visits, content of collections etc).

This commitment is reflected in ongoing projects such as Transforming the D-Day Museum, LCT 7074 -
resurrecting a D-Day hero and Wild About Portsmouth. These all provide opportunities for people to
engage with their heritage in a variety of ways, gain new skills and so on, ie as community groups,
visitors, volunteers and participants.

This year the PoP references the co-creation approach in which members of the community work
alongside museum staff to deliver services. This will further enhance the diversity of the people
involved with the service.

The work listed within the PoP is anticipated to benefit a range of people.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Positive / no

Group Negative impact Unclear
Age *
Disability ) ¢
Race ) ¢
Gender *
Transgender *

Sexual orientation Page 64%



Religion or belief

N
| >
™ N
s
e

Pregnancy and maternity |/- ] |_ 1 IK_'\I
Other excluded groups O Izl (_jl

If the answer is "negative"” or "unclear” consider doing a full EIA

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

Age * o ®
Disabilty * ) )
CE e
® 0O O
Transgender * [ ] [ ]

-

S
—
. oy
—
oy

Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

) HDH) (
o

Pregnancy or maternity |

%

S
-
S
h.

Other excluded groups

Rt

o
4
[ ]
A S

If the answer is "no" or "unclear” consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Age * @ @
Disability * () ()
Race @ PRgE @ [:]



Gender
Transgender
Sexual orientation

Religion or belief

L SRR JRED. JERD JRRD 5

Pregnancy and maternity

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no" or "unclear” consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

Transforming the D-Day Museum remains a priority for the Museums Service (ending in February
2021). This project specifically makes provision for people of different ages, of different abilities and
people with different perspectives. For example the new displays were developed in dialogue with
people with disabilities and during the first year of operation we have delivered targeted activities to
ensure they can access the content of the new museum (see website / events leaflet for further
information). A number of community projects has enabled people of different ethnicities and ages
(and degrees of isolation) to engage in different ways with the story of D-Day. A similarly rigorous
approach is being adopted for the LCT project through outreach activity.

Looking ahead we will be developing plans for the redisplay of the Natural History Museum at
Cumberland House with the input of stakeholders including families. The co-creation approach being
explored would give residents from across the city the opportunity to influence how they / their
community is represented in the city's collection and the museums displays.

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email:equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Jane Mee.

This EIA has been approved by: Page 66



Contact number:

Date:

Please email a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Portsmouth Museums Plan on a Page 2019/2020

Appendix 1

Activity

Lead

Timescale

Funded
by

Build the profile and reputation of the Great Waterfront C

ity by showcasi

ng the national

and international heritage of the city, and delivering excellent customer care.
Complete Transforming the D-Day Museum | JM NLHF PCC
project: (TDDM project
e Deliver Activity Plan including the DD75 FWTT March 2020 | budget)
community, young peoples, writer in Project runs | £5M
residence projects and events 'til 2020/21
e Achieve Business Plan targets B
e Support the PDDM Trust with fundraising | IM
e Draft Collection Development Policy D Libor
e Reporting to National Lottery
e Re-display Pickett-Hamilton Fort and
anti-aircraft gun subject to funding DE
Support the LCT 7074 project (NMRN lead) IM Open spring | (NLHF NMRN
e Deliver the Activity Plan including pop-up | DJ 2020 lead)
museum, journey project and volunteers
e Prepare for operation of LCT as part of JBJS
The D-Day Story
e Support other project strands including | AW TT
interpretation and conservation of tanks
Complete documents for the Zoo Licence IM July 2019
Review the Museums Strategy IM March 2020

Reflect the diversity of the city's culture and communities

in our visitors and offer

Develop Collecting Portsmouth - a project M 2-3 year NLHF / ACE
that will involve local communities in project. £250K thc
decisions about the development of the Informs
city's museum collections (subject to Accreditation
funding) ALL application
e R&D phase - learning from good practice in 2021

ours / other services
e Consultation and preparation of a

funding application
Marketing and research to deliver visitor and | ME March 2020 | £30,000
income targets and broaden audiences museum
e Deliver marketing plan budgets

e Evaluate campaigns and audience
demographic

Page 69




Provide inspirational opportunities for people to enjoy and learn from the collections.

Deliver Wild about Portsmouth involving and | CT Project runs | NLHF project
engaging people in a variety of ways with until 2020 budget
the natural history collection and future
plans for the redisplay of the natural history
museum.
Deliver series of exhibitions and events, inc:
e The Portsmouth Charter (PMAG) KB April
e Portraits: D-Day Veterans (PMAG) SW June
e Portsmouth revisited (PMAG with loans £13K museum
subject to external funding) SWTT Sept budgets
e Complete redisplay of the Keep with
Mary Rose Trust (SSC) Thc
e 125 years of municipal museums KB Jan 2020
e Prepare for 75" Anniversary of VE Day FW AW May 2020
Support HIW Wildlife Trust Secrets of the CTTT April 2020 (NLHF
Solent plastics activity strand and installation HIWWT lead)
at Portsmouth Natural History Museum.
Ensure sustainability and resilience through an entrepreneurial approach to income
generation and partnerships
Develop spaces for rent at Portsmouth JB March 2020 | Museum
Museum and Art Gallery to deliver the £39K budget?
savings target for service for 2019/20.
Review fees & charges at DDS to increase JB £0
) July
use, income and footfall
Support GEH volunteers at Eastney with CRTG Museum
programme of works for this year budget £750
Deliver planned building works at Dickens' AM JS March 2020 | Capital budget
Birthplace, Eastney Beam Engine House and
Southsea Castle inc the Lighthouse project
Produce series of high quality prints of SW May 2019 Museum
works from the city's collection for Lord budget
Mayor suite £1,000
Continue to develop wedding offer IS March 2020 | £0
Create a learning culture across the service to develop and empower staff
Review first year of operation of The D-Day | JB £0
Story with team to inform future plans inc
arrival of LCT.
Develop The D-Day Story staff + volunteers DJ March 2018 | LCT project
in preparation for the operation of LCT budget
Develop new audiences using digital technology
Complete development of new websites for | DH July 2019 Museum
all sites. Update names of sites. budget
Increase social media activity by 10% KB FW AW | March 2020 | £0
SW CT

Page 70




Agenda Item 7

Portsmouth

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY CITY COUNCIL

(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not

require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or

Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)

Title of meeting: Culture and City Development Decision Meeting
Subject: BookFest 2019

Date of meeting: 19 July 2019

Report by: Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services
Wards affected: All

1. Requested by
Cabinet Member for Culture and City Development

2. Purpose

2.1 To update the Cabinet Member on the success of the 2019 Festival.

3. Information Requested

3.1 Background to BookFest
Portsmouth BookFest was launched in 2010 by the Library Service working in
partnership with independent bookseller The Hayling Island Bookshop with the aim
of promoting reading for pleasure and encouraging attendance at book events by
those who might not ordinarily attend book events.

3.1.1 This year's event was the ninth festival and since 2010 it has developed into a
festival that hosts events with bestselling authors and speakers and supports local
writing talent and creativity through a programme of events across a two-three week
duration. It now sees collaboration with the University of Portsmouth, local writing
and spoken word groups in Portsmouth and the Southern Hampshire region and a
number of local venues.

3.1.2 The festival meets City aims and objectives by attracting visitors to the city and thus

helping promote the Great Waterfront City as a destination. It also encourages
reading for pleasure in local children and adults, helping to increase their skills. It
contributes to the local economy by encouraging skills and confidence in local
people.

Pade 71
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY CITY COUNCIL
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not

require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or

Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)

3.2

b)

d)

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

Ticket sales increase
In 2019 BookFest saw an increase in ticket sales of 55% on public events after
lower ticket sales in 2018. This could be attributed to a number of reasons:

The Library and Archive Service was awarded £140k from Arts Council England in
2018 for the City of Stories project and BookFest benefitted from extra funding by
being able to present more events - a total of 37 events were hosted this year as
opposed to 33 in 2018 and 25 in 2017. BookFest presented a strong programme
with a very wide range of events. It was also fortunate to secure some big names
this year with Simon Brett at MysteryFest and former MP and bestselling memoir
writer Alan Johnson attracting two hundred people. As with the Lord David Owen
event in 2017 audiences really appear to enjoy the opportunity to hear speakers
who have had interesting careers and been prominent public figures.

This year the weather was better than 2018 with no snow storms disrupting travel.

Increased use of social media was made this year with almost daily tweets to
advertise events and generate interest.

Early years events continue to be extremely popular with the Gruffalo tour sold out
at nearly all nine library branches and there are plans to host more early years
events in 2020.

Statistics and feedback

Ticket sales

As mentioned above ticket sales were up on 2018 by 55% from 600 to 930 people
attending public events. The highest attended events were Alan Johnson at 200,
MysteryFest at 50 and the Gruffalo tour which saw 200 attend. Talks with local
interest are particularly popular and BookFest saw high attendance at events which
explored local figures and authors such as Robert Dolling (65 people attended this
talk), HG Wells and Rudyard Kipling.

Audience data

It's been possible to analyse audience data from the feedback forms we received
although it's worth noting that feedback forms were not collected at the Gruffalo
events.

Areas:
e 73% of audiences came from the PO1-POG6 area.
e 16% came from PO postcodes PO7 and above
e 10.5% came from outside of the PO area with GU and RH being the most
common postcodes. This tells us that although BookFest does attract

Page 72
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY CITY COUNCIL
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not

require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or

Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)

3.4

audiences from further afield it is very much a local book festival. This
reflects the fact that BookFest does not advertise widely outside of the city
although programme leaflets were delivered to locations in Havant, Fareham
and Petersfield. To advertise beyond the city would require a significant
financial investment in railway station campaigns.

Ages:

We know that the high attendance at Gruffalo events means that a high percentage
of total audiences for BookFest (70%) were in the 0-10 years old age category.
Outside of Gruffalo the biggest age group attendance is in the 50+ age range.
BookFest struggles to attract audiences in the 20-50 age group and this will be
addressed in 2020 with more events aimed at this age group.

Gender:

63% of audiences were female, 31.5% male and the rest preferred not to say.
BookFest always sees more attendance from females although this year has seen a
much larger attendance from males - this was due to the Alan Johnson event which
saw a high percentage of males as well as the local history talks and MysteryFest
which traditionally attracts more males than other events.

Diversity:

85.5% of audiences gave their ethnicity as '"White' on evaluation forms. BookFest
clearly has more work to do in engaging more audiences from diverse backgrounds.
This year's City of Stories work is seeing the Library and Archive Service engage
with people from a range of backgrounds through targeted project work with
identified communities.

Feedback

Feedback on events was exceptionally positive this year with no events rated as
'poor' and only two feedback forms where events were rated as 'fair' meaning the
rest were rated 'excellent' or 'good'. This reflects the quality of the speakers and the
smooth running of the events run by library staff and volunteers.

Some feedback was given that attendees would like to see refreshments offered at
all events. Currently refreshments are offered at longer running events. This can be
put in place but is likely to require a slightly higher ticket price being charged to
meet costs. Alternatively where the event is held in a venue with a café the café can
be open to serve audiences.

Pade 73
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY CITY COUNCIL
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)

Signed by
Stephen Baily
Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Appendices: None

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location

Pagé 74
www.portsmouth.gov.uk



	Agenda
	3 Portsmouth Creates
	Portsmouth Creates - Equality Impact Assessment
	Portsmouth Creates - Appendix 1 Presentation

	4 Annual Libraries and Archives update
	5 Archives Management Policies
	Archives Management Policies - Equality Impact Assessment
	Archives Management Policies - Appendix A - Access
	Archives Management Policies - Appendix B - Collections Care
	Archives Management Policies - Appendix C - Collections Information

	6 Portsmouth Museums annual update
	Portsmouth Museums annual update - Equality Impact Assessment
	Portsmouth Museums annual update - Plan on a Page

	7 Bookfest update

